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INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KUWAIT
HOTELS COMPANY K.5.C.P.

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statenents

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kuwait Hotels Company K.5.C.P,
(the "Parent Company™) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group™), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolideted
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and npotes to the consolidated financial stalements, including a summary of significant
accounting palicies,

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Baxis for Opinion

We conducted our gudit in accordance with Intemmational Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Audifor ‘s Respansibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statemenis section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the Imtemational Ethies Standards Board for Accountants'
International Code af Ethics for Professional Accountants fincluding International Independence
Standards) (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in sccordance
with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audil evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

key audit matters are those marters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
i our aodit of the consohdated financial sfatements of the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our awdit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a séparate opinion on these matters. For each
key audit matter below, owr description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
contexi.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor & Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond 1o our
assessment of the nsks of matenal misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to sddress the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KUWAIT
HOTELS COMPANY K.5.C.P. {continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)
Key Audiv Matters {continued)
Expected evedit losses (ECL) for trade receivables

As at 31 December 2021, trade receivables amounted to KID 643,440 representing 9% of total
assets of the Group.

The Group determines the expected credit losses on trade receivables by using & provision
matrix that is based on historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-locking factors
specific (o the debtors and the economic environmenl, Trade receivables have heen grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and days past due.

Due o the significance of trade receivables and ihe complexity involved in the FCL
calculation, this was considered as a key audit matter,

Qur audit procedures included, among athers, the following:

' We assessed the ressonablencss of the assumptions used in the ECL calculation by
commparing them with histoncal data adjusted for current market conditions and forward-
looking information in view of the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic;

»  We performed substantive procedures o test, on @ sample basis, the completeness and
accuracy of the information included in the deblors’ ageing repon;

v Further, in order 10 evaluate the appropriateness of management judgements, we venified on
o sample basis, the customer's historical payment patterns and whether any post vear-end
payments had been received up to the date of completing our sudit procedures.; and

We also considered the adequacy of the Group's disclosures relating 10 the ECL,
management’s assessmenl of the credit nsk and their responses to such risks in Note 22 to
the vonsolidaled financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KUWAIT
HOTELS COMPANY K.S.C.P, (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Other information included in the Group’s 2021 Annual Report
Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the
information included in the Group’s 2021 Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We obtained the report of the Parent Company’s
Board of Directors, prior to the date of our auditor’s report, and we expect to obtain the remaining
sections of the Annual Report after the date of our auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the [FRSs, and for such internal control as management
detenmines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concer, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
S0.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditoy’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered matenial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KUWAIT
HOTELS COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

[dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and performs audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

' Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exjsts, we are
required {o draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

4
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KUWAIT
HOTELS COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current year and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company
and the consolidated financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent
Company’s Board of Directors relating to these consolidated financial statements, are in
accordance therewith. We further report that, we obtained all the information and explanations
that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the consolidated financial statements
incorporate all information that is required by the Companies Law No. 1 of 2016 as amended,
and its executive regulations as amended or by the Parent Company's Memorandum of
Incorporation and Articles of Association, that an inventory was duly carried out and that, to
the best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of the Companies Law No, 1 of 2016, as
amended, and its executive regulations, as amended, or of the Parent Company's Memorandum
of Incorporation and Articles of Association have occurred during the year ended 31 December
2021 that might have had a material effect on the business of the Parent Company or on its
financial position.

We further report that, during the course of our audit, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
we have not become aware of any violations of the provisions of Law No.7 of 2010, concerning
the Capital Markets Authority, and its related regulations during the year ended 31 December
2021 that might have had a material effect on the business of the Parent Company or on its
financial position.
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Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

[For the year ended 31 December 202

Nores

Revenue [rom contracts with customers
Manazement fees
Remtal income

Revenuce
Cost of sales 3
GROSS PROTIT

Administrative expenses 6
Selling and distribution expenses

Operating profit (1nss)

Otber income (expenses) 7
Share of result of azsociates

PROFIT FOR THE VEAR BEFORE CONTRIBUTION TO KUWAIT
FOUNDATION FOR THE ADVANCEMENT OF SCIENCES (KIFFAS),
NATIONAL LABOUR SUPPORT TAX (NLST), ZAKAT AND
DIRECTORS RUMUNERATION

KT'AS

NLST

Lakat

Direciors’ remumeration

Income (ax on overseas operations

PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interests

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARL
ATTRIBUTABLE TG EQUITY HGOILDNERS OF TIHE PARENT
COMPANY 5

The anached voles 1o 25 form pat of tha consoliduled inancial statemenis,

2021 2020
KD KD
3,182,251 3.990,340
437,374 281,135
1,152,339 Qg4.R817
4371964 5256312
(3,286.,114) (4.213.840)
1.485850 1.042.472
(1.036.818) (976.518)

_ (164.352)
449,032 (98.438)
155,366 {20,095)

44,873 30,850
649,271 (7R.683)

(6.459) -
(10,279) -

(4,169) .
(30.000)

(2,787
895,877 {78.6823)
595,841 (76,990)

(264) (1,603)
595,577 {78,683)
10,56 fils i1.36) Nils

f



Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YIEAR

Cther comprehensive incame

Orher comprehensive income thar may he reclassificd subscqguentiy e
prafit or loss:

Exchange differcuce on translation of fareign operations

Net gther comprehiensive income that may be reclassified to profit

ar loss in subseguent periods

Cther comprehensive Income (loss) ihad sl not be reclassified 1o prafis
arloss T subseguent perlods:

Net income (loss) en equily instruments designzted at fair value through
other conprehensive income

Net otlier comprechensive income (loss) that wili not be rveclassified
to profit or loss (n subsequent periods

Other comprchensive income (loss) far the year

TOTAL COMPRTHENSIVE INCOME (1.OSS) FOR THII YEAR

Attributable ta:

Equity holders of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interests

The attached avtes |16 23 (orm parl of this consolidiied Tuaneial statements,

2021 2020
KD KD
805577 (78,683)
4] 831
6 881
944 (28,270}
944 (28.870)
Y51} (28.019)
506,527 {106,702)
596,791 (105,009)
(264) (1,693)
506,527 (106.702)

/



Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Asal 31 December 2021

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property saind equipment
Investment property
{nvestment in associates
Investment securities

Corrent assets

Jnvenlories

Accounts receivable nnd prepaymenis
Amount due from related panties
Investment securitics

Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Share capital

Statutory reserve

Voluntary reserve

Treasury shares

Fair value reserve

Foreigh currency translation reserve
Other reserve

Accumulated losses

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Non-current iabHities
Employeces' end of service benefits

Current liabilftics
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to related parties

Total liabilitics

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
/,_/" ]

St R
,_/'/ T;,.\
P //

i = ——

L

Ahmad Yousel AlKandari
Chairman

The attached notes 1 to 25 form part of this consolidated financial statements,

Notes

10

12
21
L1

13

14
15
15
16
1§

I3
15

I8
21

2021 2020
KD KD
979,116 2,585,969
1,366,324 :
236,969 168,988
9,019 8,075
2,591,428 2,763,032
6,542 11,053
1,213,158 1,216,856
130,965 118,926
75,736 56,171
2,810,254 2249815
4,236,655 3,652,821
6,828,083 6,415,853
5,775,000 5,775,000
775,721 716,137
373,015 313,431
(223,952) (223,952)
(125,038) (125.982)
(372,969) (372.975)
(513,600) (313,600)
(1,186,892)  (1,663,565)
4,501,285 3,904,494
(286) (22)
4,500,999 3,904.472
651,157 779.971
1,606,222 1,717.318
69,705 14,092
1,675,927 1731410
2.327,084 2,511,381
6,828,083 6415853

R



"SI0ALUDIELS [BIDORET ) PREPLCSU00 1yl jO Led LuQp $7 0) | 5910U PRUdene 2 |

L PON e ITT FOPFOGE  (SOYTE9971)  009sls)  (SceTet)  (egest) (E8Eged) 1SHE1€ LETYIL 007SLL’S
[ZOUvel)  1eyt) EOUs0l)  {0669L) . (3 (01887 - - - -
{o10%0) = {610°8T) = = 15y {0L8°42) - = - -
(£Ry'yl) ey (Vs6'YL) (066'9L) - = = E E -
FLLUTIOE 1LY 1 L0600 (€598 1) (DOYLIS) (9Tycir) (z1°LB) (zsgeTa) ISF 11 LEIYIL 000y SLL S
Uy ay ay ay ay ay ay axy ay ax Ty
.._..._._.“:bb \.G:.C._ ;.?.L.._.i:.__ __::_CTQ.V._M. u.b.,.md\ A LIANDI ALLIND L 2dISA v.U.__u_c_». 2L I3NA LAY ‘_S._i__.u“v
Sty o JRDIRUEIO R AMIO) HOLD S 2i0A AT Adrongo, Leopumig 20y
~HOp AU
uilzio.f
6607005t 1987) STIOSP  (Z68°981L°1)  (0QwELs) (696'zLE)  {(8€0'5T1) (756°€77) SI0'CLE VIL'SLL 000'SLL'S
- - - (g6t} : 2 - . PR GY PRL G -
LTSS TRYT) 16968 18568 = 4 6 - . - -
056 - 056 - = Y tho 3 5 = -
LLSS0Y PT) P8 $6y 4856y = . 2 = = = = -
TLERQG'E  1TE) POEFOG'S  (SUSTE99T])  (ROYClS) {SL67CLE) {T86°ST) (256'¢2e) 1EF'CIE LEIYiL UO0'CLL'S
uy dy ay ay aXy i ay ay ay ax ay
.._.\.____Sm_ ‘:EQ..N v_...f,m._.b\t.__ _‘Et___l_e_.:.w. u.u.r.v.t\ AALIS AL 15834 AAAINIL v.m.:k\.,. AN PLRES il AN \U.&Quu
w.._....S_e.::e.u \_\N_..S_:E.cbu | 2 L::\_..Q __\Q»CE_._.,EFQ m:\t; ....Su.\ n__“__z.w,ﬁu.g ._h___h_::_:_nv\_ _.h:c.::.éuv. \o.__.cq.m,
—HON! Adouaiiny
:w.._m:_t‘.\

T TSunduory miang ayr o saapioy dninha o spgoingray

0T AQuianag 1¢ WV

WO
(s30() sansusyaudiwod jeo |

QLD
(5%0]) 2A1URLUALUOD 1911

JEIA I A0} &S0
OTOF Aenue | sy

1707 RQuaag 1Y
(§] 2I0U) $DALISTL O] IDf¥URS |
ALUCOUL DAISUSLIMULGD [210 |
ALUO DAISUIYSLdinos 101

AUSA 21 10T 11§0],]
[TOT Alenuey | e sy

120¢ 12quiea(] 1§ popua 1ok ny o]

ALINOT NI STONVHD 40 INAATIVLS ddLVArIOSNOD

SoueIpISqNG S)t pue "4 70)'S Y Ausduio]) ${a10H jlEmNY



Kuwait Hotels Company I.S.C.P. and 115 Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 202]

2021 RI/¥LL
Ny Kb KD
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Proft (loss) betore tax 644,271 (78.683)
Adinsimonts 1o rveonctle profin tloss) for the venr to et casit flows
Deprecistion ol property and equipinent o 169,045 405,308
Depreciation an investment property 08,033 -
Depreciation of right-nl-use asse - 19,088
Amortisztion of intangible asses - 2.057
(Gain) loss on disposal of items of property and equipment 9 (19.970) 45,675
Gain on derecoguition of right-of-usc assely and lzase liahilities . (11.44%)
Wele-off ol intangible assets - 11,634
Provision (or employees’ end of service benefits 17 110,111 137,148
Nel allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivahles |2 12,253 131,586
Pravision for ohsolete and slow-moving inventories - 40,238
Interest income 7 {14,869 (19.949)
Uprealised gain on equity instruments designated @t Farr value through prof
or losy (19.568) (17,271
Interest on lease liabililes - 3.013
Interest on debts and borrowings - 2918
Share of resull of associates (44.873) (29.850)
Govermnment grant - (63,469)
940,336 388,625
Working capital adjusineits:
inventorics 4,511 30.848
Accounts receivabie and prepaymenis (8,355) 469,082
Amaouni due from related parties (12,039 J32.845
Trade andl ether payahles {164.700) {226.608)
Amount due to related parties 55,613 (29,504}
Cash Nlows from oparations 855,076 901,438
Emplovees® end of service benefits paid 17 (238,925} (263,946}
Receipt of government prants - (IA6D
Net cash flows {rom operafing activities 576,151 788961
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of items of property and equipiment 9 (28,993) (22,147}
Procceds from disposal of ilems of property and equipiment 9 21,514 25400
Dividend from associale 25,000 -
Investment in an associale (50,000) -
Interest income received 14,869 19949
Net mavement in shorttern deposits 35,576 (1.,756)
Net eash flows From investing activities 17,968 21840
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance costs paid - (2918
Payment af principal portion of lease liabthniey s (22,554)
Net cash ows used in financing activities - (23472)
NET INCREASLE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 504,119 754,035
Net foreign exehanpe differences 1,898 (441)
Cash and cash equivalenis at [ January 2,214,237 1,429,743
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AY 31 DECEMBER 13 2,810,254 2214237
NON-CASH ITEMS:
Transfer to mvestment properly (adjusted with property and equipment) 1,468,157

The attached notes 1w 23 form part of s conselidated finangal siatements
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Kuwait Hotels Company I.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at and for the yoor ended 31 December 2021

1 CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
1.1 CORPORATLE INFORMATION

The conselidated Nancial staterenis of Kuwait Hofels Company K.S.CP. (the “Paremt Company™) and its
subsidiarics (collectively. the “Group™) far the yearended 31 December 2021 were autharised for issue in accordance
with a resolotion of hie Parent Company's Board of Directors 9 March 2022 and the shareholders have the power to
aniend these consohdated financial stateruents al the antwal peneral assembly meeting (AGM).

The shareholders of the Parent Cowpany at the annual general assembly imecting {*AGM™) held on 31 May 2020
approved the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019. No dividends were declared
by the Parent Company for the vear ihen ended.

The Parent Company is a public sharchelding company mcomorated and domiciled in Kuwait and whose shares ure
publicly traded on Boursa Kuwait, The repistered ofTice is located al P. O, Box 833, Safut 13009, Kuwail.

The principal activities of the Parent Company is ewning, operdting and managing hotel, conumercial and residential
preperties. calering services, wnporling of consumer durables. machinery and equipment and investment in similar
husiness (0 or guiside Kuwait,

Informsation on the Group's siructuye is provided below. Information on other velated party relationships al the
Group is provided in Nole 21,

1.2 GROUP INFORMATION

A} Subsidiaries
The consolidated [inancial statements of the Group include:

Cainury of Y% equity inferest

Name fegrporation 2021 2020 Principal activities

Divectly el

Kuwzit Catering Company K.S.C. (Clesed)

(“RCCM Ruwait 99,54%  99.54%  Catenng sevvices
Catering services

Safat Caterine Services Company K.S.C. (Closed) and manpower

(“SCC) Kuywail 99, 99%  supply

Safir Intermauonal Hotel Management Cempany Kingdom of

E.C. (*SIHMT Bahraim 99.9%,* 09.9%  Hotel management

Safir International Hotel and Reson Management United Arab Hotel contract

L.L.C("SIHRM Dubar) Emrates 100 1GG%  management

Indivecrly held:

Sahr Support Services Company K.5.C, (Closed)

(ndivect!y fiedd theough KCC) Kitwatl 99. 7% 046.7%  Manpower supply
Pastry and bakery

Ramo Tradme Company W.L 1., mapufacturing and

Undivectiv held througlh SCC) Kuwait 99.9%™ 09.9%,  wading

*Parent Company has majority stake in the above subsidiaries and the remaining shares are held by noninees, who
have confirmed in writing thal Parcnt Company is :he benelicial owner (except for lhe non-controlling inrerest

held in KCCY.




Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As ai and for the year ended 31 December 2021

1 CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)
1.2 GROUP INTORMATION (continued)

b} Associales
Set out below are the associates ol the Group as al 31 December:

Countey of Y equity inderest
Nawe incorporativg. - 2027 20210 Principal activities
Travel and (ourism
Abu Nawas for Tounsn and Senaces Tunisia 0%, 50U related services,
Caf Cale Company W.L.L. Kuwait 50%, 304 Catering services
Milk Box Catering Comipany W.L.L. Kuwail 504 - Catering services
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 BASIS OF PREFPARATION

The consolidated financial siatemenis have been prepared on a lustorical cost basis. except for invesument
securities that have been measured al fair value.

The conselidated (inancial statements are presented in Kuwait Dinars (KD), which is also the functional currency
of the Parcut Company.

The consohdated Nnancial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) ax issued by the Intermational Accounting Standards Board (JASB).

The consolidated financial statements provide comparavve mdormation i respect of the previous peried. Certain
comparative information has been veclassified aud re-presented 1o confoim (o the ctassificatian in the cuncnt
peciod. Such reclassification has been wade 1o improve the qualivy of infommation presented. The reclassifications
had po impact on the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and statement ol
changes in equity as previously reported.

22 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statemenis comprise the financial statements of the Parenl Contpany and {15 subsidianes
as 4t 31 December 2021, Control is achieved when the Group i exposed, or has rights, 1o vanable retumns from its
involvement witll the inveslee and has the abilily to affect those retumns through its power over thie mveésies,
Specifically. the Group controls zn imvestee if and only if the Group has:

Power ever ke investee (.., existing rights that give il the current ability 1o direct the relevant aclivities of the
investee)

LExposure. or rights, 1o variable velums from its involvement with the investee

The ability to use its power over the investec 10 affect its retums

Generally, there is a presumpnion that a majority of voting rights resulis in control. To support this presumption
and when the Group has less than a majority of the veting er similar ripghts of an inveslee. 1the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumsiances in assessing whether it has power aver an imvestee, includimg:

The coniraclual arrangements with (be other voic holders ol the investee
Rights arising from otber contractual arrangements
The Group's voling rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not 1t comrols an investee f facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes o one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtaiits contral over the subsidiary and cedses when the Group loses conirol of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilies.
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the vear are included in the consolidated
finoncial siatements from the dae the Group paing control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidhary,




Kuwait Hotets Company K.S.C.P. and 1ts Subsicharies
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at and for the vear ended 31 December 2021

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POTICIES {continued)
2.2 BASLIS OF CONSOLIDATION (eoutinued)

Profit or logs and cach comnenent of ather comprehensive income are atiributed 10 the cquity hotders of the parent
ol the Group and (o the non-contrailing interests, even 1f this resulis i the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. When necessary, adjustments are made 1o the financial state ments of subsidiaries o bring their accounling
policies into e with the Group’s accotmling policies. All mtra-group assets and liabilities, cquity. inconie.
cxpenses and cash Nows relating o lransactions between members of the Group are climinated in fall on
consohdation.

A change v the ownership interest of a subsidiary, withour a loss of control, 15 accounled for as an equity
rransaction, 1{ the Group loses control over a subsidiary. it derecognises the velated assers (including goodwill).
lighilities, non-controlling interests and other components of cquity, while any resultant gain or loss 1s recopnised
in proft or toss. Any invesiment retained 18 recogmsed at {air value,

13 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURICS

New and amended standards and interprefations

The Group applied for the first-fime certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on ot afler I Januany 2021 (unless stherwise stated). The Group has not carly adopled any othev standard.
interpretation or amendment thai has been 1ssued but i< not yet effecrive.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reforn — Phase 2: Arendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and TIRS 16
The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the fmancial reporing effects when an interbank offercd
rate {IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free fnterest rale (RFR). The amendments include the
following practical expedients:

A practical expedient (0 require contractoal changes, or changes to cash flows that are directly requined by the
refors, 1o be treated as changes © a floating interest rate, equivalent 1o a movement 1 a market rate of interest
Permiil changes roguired by IBOR referm 1o be made to hedpe designations and hedge documentadon wilhout

the hedging relaticnsiip being discontinued
Provide lemporary relief to entities rom having to nieet the separately identifiable requivement when an RER
instrument is designaied as a hedee of a visk component

These amendments had no fmpact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The Group intends to use
the practical expedients in future periods if they become applicable.

2.4 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Standards 1ssued but not vel effective up to the date of issuanee ol the Group's linancial statements are listed
below, The Group intends to adopt those standards when they become effective. However. the Group expects no
signiftcant npact from the adoption of the amendments on its fimancial position or performance.

Amendments o TAS 1: Classifieation of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
Iny January 2020, the IASB issucd amendments to paragraphs 69 10 76 of TAS | o specify the requirerienis {or
elassifying liahilities as current or non-current. The amendments clarify:

What 1s meant by a ripht o defer settlement

Thal a right to deter must exast at the end of te reporting period

That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right

Thal only i an embedded derivative in a eonvenible liability is itself an equity instrument would the terms of
a lability not impael s classification

The amendments are effective for annual reporung periods bepinning on or alter 1 January 2023 and musl be
applied retrospectively. The Groug is currently assessing the impacl (he amendments will have on current practice.
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As at and Tor the year ended 31 December 2021

2 BASLS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (continued)
24 STANDARDS [SSUED BUT NOT YET EFVECTIVE (contimied)

Refercuce 10 (the Conceptanl Framework — Anrendments 1o IFRS 3

In May 2020, the JASB issued Amendments 1o 1FRS 3 Busimwess Combniations - Reference o the Concephial
Framework, The amendments are intended © replace a reference to the Framewerk for the Proparaiio and
Presentation of Financial Sratenienis, 1s5ued in 1989, with a reference o the Concepual Franiesvork for Finuncial
Reparring 1ssued in Mareh 2018 withowt significantly changing 1ts requirements.

The Board also added an exceplion 1o the r2cognition principle of IFRS 3 to avoid the issue of potential “day 2°
gaims or losses ariging Tor liabilives and zonungent liabi)ities thar would be withm the seope of TAS 37 or [TRIC
21 Levies, if inourred scparatcly.

At Ihe same time. the Board decided (o clarity existing guidance vy IFRS 3 for contngent assets that would not be
affected by replacing the reference to the Framework lor the Preparation and Presentation ol Financial Statemants,
The amendiments are effective for annual reporting periods begmnmg on or aller 1 January 2022 and apply
prospectively.

The amendmems are noi expected 10 have a tateria: impact on the Group.

Property, Plant and Equipment; Proceeds before Intended Use — Amendmenty fo I4AS 16

Tn May 2020, the 1ASB issued Propenty, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before laiended Use, which prohibits
entities from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equmpnent. any proceeds from selling Hems
produced while bringing that asset 1o the lacation and condition necessary for il to be cepable of operating in lhe
mamner intended by management, Inslead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling such items. and the costs
of producing those items, in profit or loss,

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periads beginning on or afier | Janvary 2622 and must be applied
retrospectively Lo items of praperty, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the
earhiest period presented when the entity first applies the amendment.

The amenduients are not cxpected o have a material impact on the Group

IFRS 9 Financie! Instruments — Fees in the '10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities

As part of ils 2018-2020 annval improvements to I[FRS standards process the [ASB issued amendment to IFRS 9.
The amendment ¢larifies the tees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financia) liability are substantially different frora (he terms of the oripinal financial Liability. Thesc fees include
only those paid or received by the borrower and ihe lender, mcluding fecs pard or received by either the berrower
or lender on the other’s behalf, An entity applies the amendment to financizl liabilities tha. are medified or
exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the enuity first applies the amendment.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2022 with earlier adoption
permitied. The Grroup will apply the amendments to financial lizbilities that are modified or exchaunged on or alier
the beginning of the annual reporiing period in which the entity first applies the amendment,

The amendments are not expected to have @ material impact on the Group.

Definition of Accounting Estimaltes - Amendments to [AS 8

In February 2021, the |ASE issued amendments to 1AS &, in which it introduces a definition of “accounting
estimaies’. The amendments clarilfy the distinction between changes in accountng estimates and changes in
accounting policies aud the correction of errors. Also, they clanifv how entities use measurement technigues and
inpults to develop acvounting estimales.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or afler 1 January 2023 and apply o
changes in accoumting policies and chanyes i accounting estimates that ocour on or afler the start of that period.

Eartter application is pennited as long as this fact is disclosed.

The amendments are not expegted to have u materral impact on the Group.
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As at and for the yew ended 31 Duecammber 2021
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (rantinned)
2.4 STANDARDS ISSUED BUTNOT YUT EFFECTIVE (continued)

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to IAS 1 and 1TRS Practice Statemenl 2

It February 2021, the TASI iscued amendments o TAS | and [FRS Praviice Statement 2 Making Mareriafity
Judgemenss, wowhich it provides euidance and examples lo help entities apply materiality judgements Lo
accouting palicy disclosnres. The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are
more uselul by replacing the requirement for entities o disclose theh “significan™ accounling policies with a
requiremient (o disclose their "material” accounting pelicies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept
of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments to [AS | are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2033 with earlier
appheation penijtied Since the amendments 1o the Practice Stutement 2 provide non-mandatory ghidance on the
application of (he definition of material o accounting policy information, an effecuve date for these amendments
IS DOt IFECEINANY.

The Group is currenty assessing the impact of the amendments o determine the nupact shey will have on the
Group’s accounting poicy disclostires,

2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.5.1 Business combinations and acquisition of nan-contralling interests

Business combinations are accounted [or using the aequisition nethad. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the agpregate of the censideration (ransferred, which is measured at acquisition date fair value, and the amount of
any non-controlling interests n the acquiree, For each business combination. the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share ot the acquiree’s identitiable
net assels. Acguisition-related costs are expenscd as incurred and mcluded i adnumstrative expenses,

When the Group acguues a business. it assesses the financial assels and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, geonomic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This inchudes the separation of emmbedded derivatives in host contracts by Ihe
acquiree.

Contingent consideration. resulting [rom business combmations, is valued at fair value at the acqusition date.
Contingent consideration classificd as equity is nat remcasnred and ils subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity. Contingent consideration ctassified as an assel or lability that is 4 fmancial instrament and within
the scope of IFRS O Financial Instruments. is measured al fair value with the chauges in [air value recognised in
the profit or loss in accordance with JFRS 6. Other contingent consideration that is not within the scope of IFRS 9
is measured at fair value at each reporting date with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill 1s initially measured at cost (bemg ihe excess of the aggregare of e consideration transferred and the
amounl tecognised for non-cantrolling iuterests and any previous interest held over the net identifiable asses
acquired and lizbilities assumed). ¥ the fair value ol the net asscts acquired s m excess ol lie aggicgate
consideration wansferred. (he Group re-assesses whether it has correctly dentfied all of the assels acquired anid
all of the labilites assumed and reviews the procedures used 10 measute the amounts lo be recognised at the
acqnisition date. 1 the reassessment stil) resulis in an excess of the fair value of nel assets acquired over the
aggregale consideration transferred. then the gain is recognised in prefit or Joss.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (CGU) and part of the operation within that units
disposed of, the goodwill associaled with the disposed operation 1s included in (be carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circurustances is measured based on
the reiative valoes of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating umni( retpined.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured 2t its fair value. Subsequently. it
is measured at the higher of the amoeunt 1hat would be recognised in aceordance with the requirements for
provisions in [AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liahilities and Contingent Assets ov the araount initially recopnised
less [when appropriate) camulative amorlisation recognised in aceardance winly the requirements Tar vevenve
recocnition.
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As el and for the veur ended 31 December 202)

! BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (continued)
2.8 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cominued)

152 fuvestnient in asspeintes

An associate ts an entity over which the Group has significant nifluence Significant influcnce is the power 1o
participate 1 the financal and opevating policy decisions of the mvestee, but is not comral or joint contro} aver
thase policres,

The consideralions made i1t determining significant inflitence or jomy vontral are similar to (hese necessary 10
determine contrel over subsidiaries. The Group's investment in its associate we accounted for using the cquity
nethod.

Under the equity methcd, the investment in an associate is initally recognised at cost The carrymg amount of the
invesiment is adjusted (o recognise changes in the Group’s share of pet assets of the associate since the acguisition
date. Grodwill relating o the assoetate is included in the carrving amount of the investment and is not tested for
impairment separaiely.

The statement of profit or loss reflcets the Group's share of the vesults of operations of the associale. Any ¢hange
in OCI of those invesices is presenled as part of the Group's OCI, In addition. wiien there has been a change
recognised directly in (he equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes. when applicable.
in the stalement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from ransactions between the Group
and the assaciale are eliminated {o the cxlent of the interest in the associnte.

The aggregate of the Group's share of profit or loss of an assoviate is shown on the face of the statament of profit
or loss outside operating profit and sepresents profit or loss afler (ax and non-controlling interesis 1 the
subsidiavies of Uie associate.

The financial sialements of the assacizte are prepared tor the same reporting period as the Group, When necessary.
adiustments are made (o bring the accounting policies 1 line with those of the Group.

2,53  Reveuue recognition

Revenue from contracts with cuslomers is recognised when control of lhe voods or services are Irans{ened 10 the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideraticn to which the Graup expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. The Group has concluded that it is the principal in all of Us revenue amengements sipee
typically controls the gaods or scrvices before transferring them to the customer.

The specific recognition critena described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Sule of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the poins i time when cotrol of the asset is transferred io the
customer., genesally on delivery of the equipment. The nonmal credif temm is 30 to 90 days upon delvery.

In determining the transaction price far the sale of goods, the Group considers the effects ol variable considerauon.
the existence of sipnificant financing components. non-cash consideration and consideration payable to the
custonter (i anv),

(i) Fariabie considerarion

If the consideration in & contract includes a variable atnount. the Group estmaies the amount of consideration @
which it will be enditled i exchange jor transferring the goods to he customer, The variable consideration i
estimated a1 conlracl inception and censtramed until it is highly probable that a signiticant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated unceriainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. The Group has no eontructs with a right of return and volume rebates.

{ii} Stgnificin financing component

Generallv. the Group receives shori-tenn advances {rom its cusomers. Using the practical expedient iy [FRS 15,
the Group does not adjust the promised xmount of consideration for the effects of a sipnificant {inancing
component. if it expects. at contraet inception. thal the period between the iransfer of the prowsed good 1o the
customer and when the customer pays for (hat good will he ene vear or less. The Group doos not receive any long-
term advances from custemers,

| fs
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SICNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinned)
2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5.3 Revenue recognition {canthued)

Munugemeiit fres

The Group receives fees for providing specific admnisiative tasks in relation lo certain properties under
managenien(, These services melude formulating marketing strategy. traming programmes. {easibility studies and
managing holel. These services represent a single performance obligatuion comprised of a series of distiner daily
services that are substaniiafly the same and have the same patteni of transfer over the contract period. Ax the
benelit to the customer of the services is transferred evenly aver the eontract period, these fees are recognised as
revenue evenly over the period. bused on e elapsed.

Revenne from rendering of services

Revenue from rendering services is recopnised when the performance obligation is satisfied aver-time and payment
s wenerally duc upon completion of the services and acceplance of the customer. [N seme contracts, advinees are
required before the service are yendered.

Rentul income
The Group earns revenue from acling 2s a lessor in operaling feases which do not transfer substantially all of the nsky

and rewards incidenial to ovwnership of the leased property.

Rental Dncome arising from operating leases is accounted for on # smaight-hne basis over the lease erm and (s
mehuded in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to itx operating nature. Inital direct cosis incurred in
negotiating and aranging an operating lease are recognised as an expense evey the lease ferm on the sane basis as
the Jease imcome.

254  Government grants

Govemmenlt gramts are recognised where there s reasonable assurance that Ihe erant will be received. and all
attached conditions wiil be complied with, When the grant relates Lo an expense iledn, it is recognised as incone
on a systematic basis over the periods that the related casis. for which it is intended to compensate, are capansed.
When the grant relates 10 an asset, it is recognised as income in cqual amonnts over the expected nsefil life of \he
related assel.

When the Groap receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grani are recarded at rominal amotmts
and releaved to profit or loss over the expeeted useful hife of the agsel, based on the patlemn of eonsumption of the
henefits of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments,

255 Taxes

Kiowait Foandation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS)

The contribution to KI'AS is calculated at 1% of the profit for the year muibutable (o the Parent Company in
accordance with the moditied calculation based on the Foundation's Board of Directors® resolution. which states
that income from associates and subsidiaries. Board of Directors’ rentuneration, tiansfer to statutory raserve should
be excluded from profit for the year when detemining the contributton.

National Labour Support Tax
NLST is ealculaled at 2,5% of the profit for the year attributable to the Parent Company m accordance with Law

No. 19 of 2000 and the Ministry of Finance resolutions No. 24 of 2006.

Zakat
Contribution to Zakat 1 caloulated at 1% of the profit for the year atribuble to Parent Conipaby in accordance
with the Minisuy of Finance resajution No. §8/2007 effective from [0 December 2007.

Taxation vn overseas sabsidiary
Income tax on overseas subsidiary represents tax for operations in Egypt and is ealculated in accordance witlt (he

applicable tax Taw of these countries.

Income tax assets and Habilities for he current vear are measured at the amount expected o be recovered frimn or
paid 1o the @axation authorities, The ax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are these that are enacled
or substantively enacted. by the veporiing date w tie countries where the Group operates and generates taxable

0N,
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2 BASIS OTF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contintted)
1.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5.6  Dividend distribution

The Cirnup recognises a ability ta pay o dividend when the disiribiion is no lenger al the discretion of the Group.
Ax per the Companies Law. a disteibusion is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders al the AGM. A
carresponding amount is recognised directly i cquity.

Dividends for the year that are approved afler the reporiing date are disclosed as an event after the reporine date.

257  Cashand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidaled statement of financial pesition comprise cash on hand, non-resiricted
cash at banks and shor-tenm deposits that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant iisk of changes in value. with original matdrities of three months o less.

For the pamose of the consohidaled siatenment of cash {lows. cash and cash eguivalents consist of cash on hand.
uwi-restricted cash at banks and sheri-term deposits. as defined above. as they are considered an integral part af
the Gruup®s cash management.

258  Finaucial instruments - initial recagnition and subsequent meayurenment
A {inancial instrumient 18 any contract thal gives rse to a financial assel of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity,

i) Financial axsets

Iuitial recognition aud measurement
Financiai assets are classified. a1 initial recognition, as subsequently measured 2t amortised cost. fair value through
other camprehensive income (OCT), and fair value threngh profit or loss.

The classification of {Tnancial asscis at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characterisics and e Group's business mode! for managing them, With the excepoon of trade receivables that do
not contain a sspnificant financing compeneand or for whicl the Group hes appiied the pracuical expedient. the Group
initially ineasures a financial asser at its {atr value plus. in the case of a financial assel nol at fair value through profit
or loss, ransaction cosls. Trade receivables that de nol cantain a significant financing comiponent or lor which the
Crroup has applied the practical expedient are nicasured at the ransaction price.

In order for a financial assat to be classifiad and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs o
give rise 10 cash Jows hal are *solely pavments of princival and Interest (SPPIY" on the principal amount oatstanding.
This assessment is refemred to as the SPPL test and is performed at an mstrument level. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPP1 are classified and measured at fair value through profit ar loss, irrespective of the business
model

I'he Group's business mode! for managing (naneial assets refers 1 how jt manages it Inanciul axscis 1 orde
generate cash Jows. The business mode! deternuines whether cash {ows will result from collecting conwactual cash
flows, selling the [nancial assets. or both, Financial assets classilied and measured at amontised cost are held within
a business model with the objective 10 hold financial assets i order to collect contracual cash flows while financia
assets classified and measured al fair value tlrengh OCT are held withm a business medel with the abjective of hoth
helding 1o colleel eontractual cash Dows and selling.

Purchases or sales of Rnancial assets that require delivery of assets withan a lime frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regatar way trades) are recognised on the wrade date, 1.¢.. the date that the Group
commits (o purchase or sell the asset.

Subseguent measurement

For purposcs of subsequent measurentent, {inancial assets wre classified m four calegaries:
Financial assets al amartised cos! (debt iustrinments}
Financial assets at fair value through OCT with recveling af cumulanve pains aid loases (deb! instromenls)
Financial assets desjgnated at fair value through OCT with ne recveling of comulmive gams and losses upon
deyecognition (quily instrmnents)
Financial assets at fair valuc through profit oy loas

N
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (condinued)
2.8 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

258 Fiuaoeiaf instruments — initiol recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

i) Financiel assels (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continned)

a) Finnncial asxets ut omortised coxt fdebt instenmenty)

Fimancial assels at amortised cost are subsequently measured wsing the effecuve nterest (E1R) method and are
subject Lo impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profil or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified
or unpaired,

The Growp's Mnancial assets al amortised cost includes trade and other receivables and amounts due {rom related
parties,

b) Financial assete at foiy value throvgh OCT (debi insuapments)

For debt insirunients at (uir value through OCT interest ingome, {oreign exchauge revaluation and mmparmen
losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or toss and computed in the same wanner as for (inancial
assets measured al amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCL Upon derecognition.
the cumulative fair value change recognised in OCI i recycled 1o profit or loss.

The Group has no debt instruments 24 fair value through OC1 ag at the reponing dale.

) Financial assers designated at foiv value through OCH {equity instruments)

Unpon initial recognition, the Group can elect 1o classify trrevocably its equity investnients as equity instuments
designated at fair value through OCT when 1hey meel the definition of equity under 1AS 32 Flnancrad Instruments.
Piesertarion and are notbeld for irading. The classification (s determined on an instroment-by-insirument basis.

Gawng and losses on these linancial assets arc never recyeled to prefdl or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the stateiment of profit or loss when (he right of payment has been established, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of (he financial asset. in which case, such gains are
recorded in OCL Equity instumenis designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment
assessment.

i) Financial axsets ar fair value throngh profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profil or loss are carnied i the statement af financial pesition al fair value
with net changes in [air vatue recognised in the statement of profit or loss,

This category includes certain equity investments which the Group had nal imevocably elected 10 classify al far
value througlt OCI. Dividends on equity investments are recopnised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of paymeat has been established.

Dervecognition

A financipl assel (or, where applicahle. a par of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial asseis) is

primarily derecognised (i.e.. vemoved from the Group's consolideted statement of financial position) when:
The rights to receive cash flows fram the assel have expired; or
The Group has wansterred its righis to receive cash flows (rom the assel or has assumed an obligadion (¢ pay
the received cash Dows in full without material delay 1o a third party ender a “pass-threugh” arrangement: and
either {a} the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of tlie asset, but has transferved control
of the asset

When the Group has transferred ils rights to receive cash flows front an asset or has entered into a pass-through
atrangement, it evaloales () and 10 whal extent, it has retained the risks and vewards ol ownership. When il has
neither wanslerred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor ransfenred contiol of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transierred asset o the extent of its continaing involvement. In tha
case, the Group aleo recognises »n asspciated liability, The (ranstfored asset and the associated liability are
reasured on a basts that refleets the rights and obligations that the Group has retaingd.

Conlinuing invalventent thal @kes the form of « guarantee over the wransierred assat is measured af the lower of
the original curying amount of (he asset and the maximum amowntt of considevation that the Group conld be
required 1o repay,
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RBASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUICIES {contiuned)

L8]

1.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PQLICIES {continned)
258 Financial justruments - initial recoguition and subsequent measurement {eontinued)
i) Financial ussels (contintied)

Impairment of financial assels

The Group recogriises an allowance for expecied credit losses (ECLs) for all debt mstruments not held at Lair value
through profit ov loss, I'CLs are based on the diffeverce between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and a1} the cash fows that the Group expects (o receive. discounted at an approximation of the onginal
ctfective interest rate. The expected cash flows wall include cash flows from the sale of eolluieral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual lerms.

:CLs are recognised in two slages. For credit exposures for which there has not been o sigaificant mcrease i
credit risk since initial recognition. ECLs are provided for credit Insses that resull from default events that are
possible within tiie next 1 2-months {3 12-month ECL). For those eredil exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since ninal recognition, a loss allowance is requied for evedit losses expected
over thie remaining life of the exposure, irvespective of the liming of the default (a lifeume LCL).

Far (rade recenvables and contracl assels, the Group applies a simplified approach in calenlating ECLs. Therefere.
the Group does not track changes in credit visk. but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime LCLs at
cach reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on ity hiztorical credit loss
experience, adiusted {or forward-looking factors specific 1o the debtors and the econamie environment

ir) Fincateral inbilities

Tnitial yecopnition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classificd, at iniial recognition. as financial liabilities at fair value through prafit or loss,
Joans and borrowings, pavables. or as derivatives desipnaled as hedging fustruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriaie,

The Group's financia) Habilities inclade trade and other pavables and amount due (o related partes.

All financizl liabilities are recoguised mitially al fair value and. in the case of accounts payadle, nel of duectly
atlriburable fransaction costs. Refer to the accounting policy on leases for the initial recognition and measurement
of leasc labiliues, as this is not w the scope of IFRS 9.

Subsequent measurement
for purposes of subsequent measuremeni, financial siabilities are clagsified i lwo calogores:

Financial lahilies at fair value through profic or lose
Financial labilites al amortived cost

The Geoup has not designated any financial lability as a fair valug through profit or loss and financial liabilities
ab amortised cast is more releyvant 1o the Group.

Financial Hubilities af amortised cost

This is the category most relevant to the Group. Afier inilial recogmlion. iteresi-bearing Joans and borrowimngs
are subseqirently measured at amortised cost vsing the EIR method. Gzins and losses are recognised m profu or
Joss when the liabilities are derecopnised as well as through the ETR antortisation process.

Amortsed cost is calculated by taking Dito account any discount or premium on acquusition and lees or costs thal
are an intepral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance cosls in the stalement of profit oc losx,

Trade and vther puvebios
Trade and other pavables arc recognised for amounts fo be pard s the furure for services cegeived. whether billed
by the supplier or nol.
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Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidianes
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at and for the year ended 31 December 202]

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOTNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continned)

258  Financial instruments — initial recognition snd subseguent measurement (continued)

i) Finuncial linhilities (cominued)

Derccognition
A hnancial lability is derccogmsed when the abligaton under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial fiability 18 replaced by ancther from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the (s of an existng liabiliy are substantially medified. soch an exchange or madification s treated as a
derecogniuon of the orginal liability znd the recognition of a new Hability. and the difference in the respective
carTying amounts 1s recognised in the stalement of peofit or loss.

i) Offsetting of finuncial instrinents

Financial assets and financial Habilities are offset and the net amount presented v the consolidated sttement of
financizl posidon when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the smounts and
it intends either 10 settle them on a nel basis or to realise the assct and selile the lability simultaneously.

259  Treasury shares

Treastry shares consist of the Parem Company’s own isstied shares that have been reacquived by the Group and
not yet reissued or cancelled. The treasury shares are accounted for nsing the cost method. Under this method. the
weighted average cost of the shares reacquired is charged in equity. Whea the treasury shares are reissued, gains
are credited 10 a separate account in equity (ihe “weasury shares reserve™), which is not disributable. Any realiscd
losses are charged to the same account 1o the extent of the credit balance in thai account. Any excess losses are
charged to retained eamings then 1o the voluntary reserve and stattory reserve, Gains realised subsequently on
the sale of treasury shares are first nsed 1o offser any previously recorded losses in (he order of reaerves. retained
earnings and the reasury shares reserve account. No cash dividends are paid on these shares. The 1ssue of bonus
shares increascs the sumber of treasury shares proportionalely and reduces the average cost per share without
affecting the 1otal cost of treasury shares.

2.5.10  Emplovees' end of service benefits

The Group provides end of service benefus 1o all ils employees under the Kuwait Labour Law. The entitlement 1o
these beuefits is based upon the emplovees final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a
minimun service period. The expected costs of these benefils arc accrued over the peried of employment,

Further, with respect Lo is national employees, the Group also makes contributions (6 the Public lustitution for
Social Security calculated as a porcentage of (he emplovees” salavies. The Group's obligations are limited to these
conirnbuiions. wiich are expensed when duoe,

1511 Provisions

Provigions are recognised when the Group has a present obligauen {kegal or constructive) as a resull of # pass
cvent, il is probahle that an outllow ol resewrces embodying economic benefits will be required 1o seute the
obligation and a reliable estimalte can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expecls some or
all of a provision o be reimbursed. for example. nnder an instrance contract, the reimbursement i3 recognised as
a separate asset, but only when fhe reimbursement is virlually certain. The expense relating o a provision i«
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discovnted using @ cuirent pre-tax rate thal
reflects. when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used. the increase in (hic provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as e finance cost,

2.5.12 Forcign currencies

The Group's consolidated financial statemernts are presented i KD, whicl is also the Parent Company’s functional
currency. For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency and iterns included m the financial
statements of each entity are measured using thal functional currency. The Group tses the direct methoad of
consohdation and on disposal of a foreign operation. the vam or logs that i reclussified 10 profit o loss reflects
the arnount that arises from using this method.
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Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As aland Tor the vear ended 31 December 2021

1 BASIS QT PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.5 SIGNITICANT ACCOUNTING POLTCIES (continued)

2512 Toreien currencies (continned)

Tranguctions and hatences

Transaclions i foreien currencies ave mitially recorded by 1he Group’s entives 21 thew respective functional
currengy spot rates ar die date the transaction Orst qualilies for recogniton

Muonerary assews and liabilides denominated in foreign cwrrencies ave translaled at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange al the reportmg date. Differctices arising on settlement or hransiation of manelary items are
recognived in profif or loss,

Non-monetary items thal are measured in ternms of historical cost in a foreign currency are (ranslaied using the
exchange rates al the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary {tems measured at {arr value in o foreign
currency are franslated using the exchange rates at the dae when the fair valpe ss determined. The pan or loss
arising on translation of non-moenetary items measured at fair value is reated in line with the recognition of the
wain or loss en the change in [air value of the ilem (i.e.. wanslation differences on jtems whose fair valoe gain or
toss s recognised in OC) or proflt or loss are alxo recognised in OCT or profit or loss. 1capectively).

In detertminmg the spot exchange rate o use on initial recogniiion of the related assetl, expense or mcome (or part
of it) en the derecognition of a non-motelary asset of ron-monetary iability relating to advance consideration, the
date of the transacuon is the daie on which the Group initially recognises the non-monciary asset or non-monalary
liabulity artsing trom the advance consideration. 16 there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the ransacnon date for each payment or reccipt of advance consideration.

On consohdation, the assets and liabilives ol foreign operaons are translaied af the rate of exchange prevailing
at the reporting dale and their statements of profit or loss are rranslated at exchange rates prevatling at the dates of
the iransactions. The exchange differsnces arsimg on translation for consalidation are recogiised in OCL On
disposal of a {oreign operation. the component of O retating 1o that particular foreign operation 1s reclassified
ta profit or loss.

Any soodwill arising en the sequisilion of a foreign operation and any fair value adjstnents o the carnying

amounts of assets and Habilities arising on the acquisilion are treated ax assels and liabilives of the foreign
operation and trznslated at the spot rate of exchange at the teporting dale,

2.5.13  Property and eguipment
Property and equipiment is stated at cost less acoumulated depreciation and any impainment in value.

Depreciation 1< caleulated on a stratght-line basis over the estimated usefu) lives of (he assets as follows:

Ruildings on leasehold liand 1G 1o 25 venrs
Machinery, equipment and fuymiture J1o )5 vears
l.casehold improvemants and decorations 4 [0 10 years
Mator velucles 310 8 vears

When significant parts of property and equipment are requured Lo be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives All ather repairs and mamienance costs are recognised in profitor loss
as fncurred. The present value of the expected cost for he decommissioning of an asset after s tise is melided in the
cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria {or a provision are mei.

An ilemy of property aad equipment and any signilicant pant initally recognised 1 derecognised upon disposal of
when 1o future ceonomic benefits are expected from ifs use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognilion of
the asset (calculated ay the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying smount of the asset) is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values. usetul lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed al cach fnancial yvear end and adjusted
prospective v, il approprate.
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Kuwail Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at and {or {he vewy ended 31 December 2021

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
25 SIGNITICANT ACCOUNTING POLICILS (contitiucd)

2.5.14  Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable valoe,

Costs incurred in bringing each product 1o i(s present Jocation and condition are accounted for as foltows:
Raw materials: purchase cost on werghted average basis
Finished goods: cost of direct materialz and labour and a proporiion of manufacuiring overheads based on the
normal operating capacity. but excluding borrowing costs

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price 1n the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary
(o make sale,

2.5.15 lmpairment of non-finarcial assets

The Group assesses. at each reporting date. whether there s an jndication that an asset may be impaired. 1wy
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset ts required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount, An asscl's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s faiy valuc less costs of
disposal and its value in use, The recoverable amount is determined for an ndividval assel. unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of asscts. When the
carryig amonnt of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. the asset s considered impaired and s written
down 10 its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unil is the greater of its value in use and its fair value Jess
costs 10 sell. In assessing value in use. the estimated future cash Qows are discounied o their present value using
a discount rate that reflects crrent market assessnients of (he time value of money and the risks specific o the
assel. For the purpose of impairment lesling. assets are prouped ogether into 1he smallest group ot assets that
sencrates cash inflows from continuing use (hat are largely independent af the cash mflows ol other assets or
proups of assets (the “cash-generating unit™).

An impairment loss §s recognised whenever the carrying amount of the asset or its cash pencrating unit exceads s
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses zre recognised in profit or loss An impairotent loss is only
reversed to the extent that the assel’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation. i’ no tmapaivment 1oss had been recognised.

2,516 Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position. but are disclosed unlcss
the possibility of an cutflow of resources embodying econoniic benefits 15 remote.

Contingenl assets are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position, bel are disclosed when an
inflow of economic benelits is probable.

2517 Segmentinformation

A segment is a distinguishable compenent af the Group that engages in business activities from whicl 1t earns
revenue and tneurs costs. The operating segments are used by the management of the Group 1o allocate resources
and assess performance. Operating segments exhibiting similar cconomic characteristics. product and services,
class ol customers, distribution methads and nawure of regulatory environmen! where appropriate arc aggregated
and reported as reportable segments,

2.5.18 Cwrrent versus non-¢curvent classification
The Group prescints assets 2nd liabilives in the consolidated siatenient of financal position based on current/non-
current classilication, An asset is curreni when IUis;
Fxpected to be realised or ntended ta be sold or consumed in the nonnal eperaiing cyele
Held primarily tor {he purpose of trading
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
Cash ov cash equivalent unless restricted {rom beiny exchanged or bsed 1o senle @ liability for al least twelve
monthis after the reporting period

All ather azsers are ¢lassified as non-current,




[Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries _
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As al and for the year ended 31 December 202]

? RASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (continued)
2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2,518 Current versus nan-currend classification {continucd)
A Nahdity 15 carrenl whea:

It is expeeted 1o be settled m the normal operating cyvele

It is held primanly tor the puwmpese of rading

Itis due (o be seltled within lwelve months after the reposling period: or

There is no unconditional right lo defer the setilement of the liabiiivy for at least twelve months after the reporting

nerind
The Group classifies all other liabihties as non-current.

2519 Faiv value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an oyderly transaction
between market participants a the measurcuient date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the tansactien 10 sell the assel or transfer the liability takes ptace either;

Int the principal market for the asser or Hability, or
In the absence of a principal markel, in the most edvantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous marker must be accessible (o by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a Liahility is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asser or hiability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of 2 non-financial usset takes inlo account a markel participant’s ability 10 generate
cconomic benefits by vsing the asser in its highest and best use ar by sellng it 1o another markel participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstancey and for which sufficient data are
available Lo measure fair value. maximising the uvse of relevant observable inpots and minimising Lhe use of
unabservable mputs.

All assets and Jliabilities for which the fatr value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated Ninancial statements
arc calegorised within the [air value hicrarchy, described as follows, based on the Jowest level input that is
significant 1o the {air value measurement as a whole:

Level | ¢ Quoted (unadjusted) marker prices in active markets for identical assets or linbilities:

Level 2 © Valuation lechnigues for whish the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurament is directly or indirecily observable; and

Level 3 . Valuwation lechnignes for which e lowest level input that is significant Lo the fau value

measurenent 15 uvnobsenable.

For fipancial instruments quoted in an active markel, fair value is determimed by reference to quoted market prices.
[3id prices are used for assets and oller prices are used for liabilines.

For unquoted financial instuments fair value is delenmmed by relerence to the market value of @ similar
investment, discounted cash flows, other appropriate valuation modets or brokers” quotes.

For assets and liabilities that are recogntsed in the consolidated financial s(atements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether wransfers have occurred between Levels in the hievarchy by re-assessing calegorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant (o the [air value measurernent as a whole) at the end ol each reporting
perivd.

For the purpose of lan value disclusures. thie Group has determined classes of assers and liabilities on thie basis al
the nature, characterislios and risks of the asset ov liability and the Level of the fair value huerarchy as explained
above,




Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at and [or the vear ended 31 December 2021

pl BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIHGNIFICANT ACCOVNTING POLICLES (coutinncd)
2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1POLICIES (continued)

2.5.20  Lvents after the reporting peviod

If the Grouy receives intommation after the veportmyg period. bist prior 1o the date of authorisation for issuc, abant
cancitiong that exisied at the end of the reponting period. the Group will assess if the information atfects the amounis
that it recognises in the Group's cansolidared financial statemests. The Group will adjust the atounts recogmsed m
its vonsolidated financial statements to reflect any adjusting cvents afler the reporiing pericd and update the
disclosures that relate (o those condilions ju the light of the new information. For non-adjusting events afier the
reporling period. the Group will not change the amounts recognised in its consobidated financial statements but will
disclose (he nawre of [he non-adjusting event and an estimate ol its financinl effect, or a statement that such an
estimate cannot be made, if applicable.

2521 Lcases
The Group assesses al conlvact ingeption whether a contact is. or contams. a tease. Thal is, if the centract conveys
the Tight 1o eonlrel (he nse of an idenntied asset for a period of time in exchange Tor consideration,

Gionp as & lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurgment approach [or all leases, excepl for short-iem leases and
leases of low-value assew. The Group recognises lexse liabitities (o make lease payments and right-of-use assels
representing the right 1o use the wnderlying assets.

Right-of-use assers

The Group recopnises vighl-of-use asscts at the commencement date of the lease (1.¢.. the date (he underlying asset
is available for use). Ruglit-of-use assets are measurcd at cost. less any acoumulated depreciation and impaimment
losses, and adjusled for any re-measurement of lease liabilities, The cost of ight-of-use assets inclodes the amaunt
of lease liabilities recopnised. imitial direct costs incurred. and lcase pavments made at or belore the
commencement daie Jess any lease incentives received. Unless the Group is reasonably cerfain to obiam cwnesship
of the leased assel al the end of the lease werm. the recogmised right-of-use assels are depreciated on 2 straighl-hne
basis over the shorter of i1s estimated usefu! life and the Jease term of assets.

Right-of-use assets are subject 1o impairment. Refer 1o the accounting pelicies nsection 2,510 Aupadmient of non-
Sinancie! asyets

Lease lubilitivs
At the commencement date of tlie lease. the Group recognises lcase liabilities measured at the presenl value ol lease
puyments (o be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incenlives receivabie, variable lease payments tluat depend on an index or a rate. and amounts
expected o be paid under resjdual value guarantees. The Jease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
aption reasunably cortain to be excrotsed by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects 1the Group cxercising the oplion (o 1érminate. The varjable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rale are recognised as expense i the period on which the event or eondition tha wriggers the payment

Qoonrs

It calcolating the prescnt value of lease payments, the Group nses the mcremental borrowing rate an (he lease
commencement date i ihe interest rate implict in the lease is nol readily determinable.

Atter (he commencement date. the amount of lease Labiiites s increased to reflect the acererion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrving amount of lease Babilitics is re-measuvred il there is
o moditication. a change in the Teage lerm. a change in tie in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the
assessment 1o purchase the underlving assel.

Shewd tarmy leases and leases of low value avsels
The Group applies the chord-temm lease recopnilion exemption o its shorl-lenn leases {1.e.. those leases that have a
lease termr of 12 monihs or Jess frant the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It alse apphies
the lease of low-value assets recognition exempiion 10 leases of office equipment that are considerad 10 be low value,
Lcase payments on shovi-term leases and leases ol low-value assels are recognised ns expense on a sivitight-line basis
over the lease term,

Al
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ag al and forthe vear ended 31 December 2021

TING POLICIES {continued)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCQOL
2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES (cantinued)

2,521  Leases (continued}

Group us u lessoy

Leases in which the Group does nat transfer substaniially all the risks and rewsrds incidental 1o ownership of anasset
are clasgified as operating leases. Rental meome arjsmy is accounted for on a strmght-line basis over the Jease wens
end is included in revenue in the statement of profit or logs due 1o ils aperating natwre, Inial direer costs incurred o
negonanng and arrang ing an operating lease are added to the canymg amount of the teased assar and recognised over
the lease rerm on the same basis ps rental jicome.

Conungenl rens are recognised as revenue in the penod i which they are earned.

2.5.22 Investment properlies

Invesinient properties are measared inttally at cost, including iransaction costs, The carrying amount includes the
cost of replacing part of existing mvestment properies at the Hme that cast is incurred if the recognition criteria
arc met; and excludes the costs of dav ta day secvicing ol an investinent propeny. Subsequent wo initial recogninon
imvestment propenics are stated a1 cost less depreciation and tmparment.f any,

Ivestment propeities are depreciated as follows;
Building 15 vears

Invesinienl propestics are derecognised cither when they have been disposed of or when they are penmanently
withdrawn from use znd no future economic beneftt is expected {rom their disposal. The difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carryiug amount of the asset 16 recognised i the consolidated staicment of profit or
loss i the period of derecognition.

Trausfers are made to o1 Hom investment properties only when there is a change in use. Tor a vansfer from
investment property 1o owner-occupied property, the deemed cost lor subsequent accounhing i3 the fair value at
the date of change in use. [ owner-occupied property beconies an investiment property, the Group accounts for
sach property in accerdance witl: the poliey slated under property and equiptent up (o Lhe dawe of change in use.

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group®s consolidated financial statements in conlormity with IFRS requires wmanagement
lo hake judpemenis, estimates and assumptions that s{fect (he reported amouats of revenues, expeuscs, assels and
Habilities, and the accompanying disclosures. and the disclosure of contingent assets and lisbilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in oulcomes that require a material adjustment 1a the carrying
amount of assets or liabiluies affecled m future penods,

31 Judgements

In the process ol applying the Group's accounting po.icies, management has made the (olowing udgements, apant
{rom those invalving estimations, which have the mosg sigmitieant effect in the ameunts recognised m the
consohdated [inancial statements:

Classification of financial axsets

The Group: determines the classification of financial assets based on the assessment of the business model within
which the assers ave held and assessment of whether the contraciual terns of the {Inancial asset are solely payments
af principal and inlerest on the principal amount outstanding. Refer Note 2.5.8 classilicahen of finavcial assets for

mere information.

Revenue from contracts wirlt cusiomers invoelving sule of goods

When recognising revenue in relation (o the sale of zoods to cusiomers, the key performance obligation of the
Group is considered to be the point of delivery of the goeds to the cuslomer. as this is deemed (o be the time thal
the customer obtaing contro) of the promised goods and therefore the benefits of unimpeded access.

Going concern

The management has made an assessiment of the Group's ability 1o continue os 3 yoing concern and is satisficd tha
it has the resourees 1o continue in business for the toreseeable future. Furthennore, the manapement is nof aware of
any material uncerlainties that may cast signilicant doubi upon the Group’s ability (o continu? as 3 going concermn.
Therefpre. the consolidated finan-ial slutements are preparsd on o eoing eonceim hasis,
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3 SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS. ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)
32 Estimetes and assuniptions

The key asswmptions concerning the future and other key sources of esumation uncertainty 3t ihe reporting date.
thal have a significant visk of causing a matenal agjustment o the carrying amounts of assets and Jisbitities within
the mext financial year, are described below, The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the censolidated financial staleruents were prepared, Existing circumstances and assumplions about
Future developments, however. miay change duc 1o masket changes or cirenmstances arising beyond the control of
the (roup Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Provistan for expected credit losses of nade and ether receivables

The Group assesses, on o forward-looking basis, the FCLs associated with 1ts debt mstruments canied at amorhsed
cost, The Group uses judgement in makmg these assamplions and selecting the inputs 1o the impatment
caleulation, based on the Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward loeking extimates al
the end of each reporing period.

For trade receivables. the Group applies a simplified approach in caleulating EC1 1herefore. the Group does not
track changes in credit visk. but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL al each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on us histonieal credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific 16 the debiors and the econoinic environmient. Actual results may diffes from these
estimales.

Fnpairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses impaiment of nop-financial assels at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific 10
the Group and to the particular asset that may fead 10 impairment. If an impairment trigger exists. the recoverable
amount of the asse! is determined. This invalves fair value less costs of disposal or value-in-use caleulations, which
incorporate # number of key extimates and assumpitions.

Estimation uf useful (fves of ussets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges for it propery
and cquipment and {inite life intangible asseis. The asefut lives could change significantly as a result of technical
itmovations or some other gvent. The depreciation and amortisation charge will merease where the useful lives are
less {han previonsly estimated lives, or technically obsolete or non-sirategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold will be written off or written dawn.

Fair vatne meassrentent

Manzpement uses valuation techniques te delermine the fair value of financial instruments {where active markel
quotcs are nol available). This involves developing estimates aud assumptions consistent with how marke
participants would price the instrument. Management bases its agsumptions on observable data as far as possible
bt this is not always available. In that case, 1wanagement uses the best infonmation available. Estimated Iair values
may vary from the actnal prices that would be achieved in an arm's length transaction at the reporting dale




Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidianes

NOTES TO TTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at and for the vear ended 31 December 2021

] RIVENLUE FROM CONTRACTS WITT CUSTOMERN

Set out below is the disagaregation of the Group s revenue from contracts with cusiomers:

Type of goods or service
Catering & Manpower supply
Bakery products

Gengvaphiieal narkers
Kuwiid

Timing of vevesue recogitition
Goods transferred at a pomnt in tme
Services nansferred over tine

) COST OF SALLES

Cost of inventories yecognised as an expense
Rental expenses

Stalf cosls

Depreciation expense (Note 9)

Gther direct costs

6 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Staff cosis

Depreciation cxpense

Professional charpes

Expense relating (o short-term leases
Ofher general and adminisirative expenses

2420
AD

3.830 489

- 159 851
3,182 251 3,990,340
3,182,251 3.950.340
3.182.251 3.590.340

. 159,851
3,182,251 3830489
3.182,251 3.990,340

2021 2020

KD KD
72,007 355611
316,165 238,643
2,370,193 2548382
180,365 184499
347,384 366.503
3,286,114 4,213,340

202) 2020

&D KD
502,972 413203
87,613 212321
122,343 108.917
51,523 30,197
172,367 211.880
976.518

1,036.818

]
B



Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and 1ts Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As al and for the year ended 31 Decembar 2021

7 OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)

2021 2020

KD KD

Gain {loss) on chaposid of property and equipmiend 19,970 (45.675)
Rent concession® 98,144 -
Income from service centracts 69,654 24,600
Unrealised gain on equity mstumen:s desipmaled al fair vaiue thwough profit or loss 19,565 17,271
Wreite-off of intangible asselx - (11,634)
Provision for slow mioving and obsolele mventories - (40.238)
Net allowanee jor expected credit {osses (12,253) (151,586)
Gain on devecognition of right-of-nse assers and lease liabilities - [1.448
luterest meome 14,869 19,949
Chalet ransfer charges 22,000 56,000
Goverument granis - 83469
Net toreign exchange (Joss) gam (128,101 15.670
Wee back of liabilities 23,923 -
Qther imseellaneous meome 27,597 20,651

155366 {20,095)

* Relll concession represents concessions veceived by the Group from is lessor as a result of COVID-19
pandentic.

8§ EARNINGS PER SHARI (EDS)

Basic CPS amounts are calealated by dividing (he profit (loss) for the vear atnibutable to ordinary equity bolders
of the Parert Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares owstanding during the year. Difuted
CPS is calcutated by dividing the prafit {Joss) anvibutable 10 ordinary equity holders of the Parent Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares cwstanding during the year plus (he weighted average number of
ordinary shares that would be i1ssued on conversion of all the dilulive polential ordinary shares inlo ordinary shares.
As there are no dilutive nstrumenis oatstandwy. basic and diluted eamings (loss) per share are identical.

2021 2020
Profit (loss) for the year anributable to cquity holders ol the Parest Company (KID) 595.841 (76.590)
Weighted average number of shares owstanding (shares) ¥ 56,433,300 56433300
Basic and dituted EPS ({ils) 10.56 {1.30)

* The weighted average number of shares 1akes info acceunt ihe weighted averape cffect of changes in treasury
shares during the vear.

There have been no other (ransactions ivelving oxdinary shares or pelential orginary shares between the reporting
date and the date of authorization of these consolidated financial statements,




Q] omou) asml

adueya jo awp oy e Apadeid Jusunsaatl st As)eredss 10] PRIUROIOR PUB PILJISSE(02I U SEY LS 69K | (I 40 IUNOWwe Swkiied 12U e i 2589] Smeiade ue Japun uoiuod ine-pajuos
syt yosas e ey sned panyy e o ywawdinba pue Auadod 10pun pagIsselo PUR 380 SANRISIUUPE U0 S1t 10 pasn A[snotadsd ‘Bmpling s jo uonsod 2 jno paital droin) au 1eak o Suing

HYGEEEC

VIEGLO

YTEOR0Y

(WCF )
SO HY |
(YL op0)
TENOLLE

L1Eggasl
B0y L0
SHOES LY

Fas Ny

{Li6721Y)
£00'8T

VWOYF Ry L)
| £87T9L9

(Yos'pCy)

¢8| B
OUL SO L

uy
poy

1L071 €

0EPZl

I8 10T

VOLETLLD)
cEynl

HIR'ELZ
{HLEYLL)
66061

{PSFTLI)
Dog

ESANEVEY

ay
SUYDN SOTOJG

POOTOY

LyL6E

LEYSCL

(L)
LSt

165°0CL

(gl ]
[

cl < en
—— O
v \
- v

~

g}

FRE'SLL

<)

Hy L6l

SS9 L

(rLyEs))

9<6'L

PRV
ay

SHOuDI022Y

Pup spuduraaddi)

ployasna“y

1o <61

88P LI

TSLLTSTT

(LTy'6Ll)
9y LL

REFOUOL]
(uEmeRt)

YLe Lyl
B$OUTEY'|

0FZZ789°L

et ipl)
PSY6

675 g8l

L89p°281)
166°2]
RIS I

@y

Japruantf
pUD JuDurdinbs
NI

€08'¢C{E NZ0g 12qQLuada] [y
rdzardIly 1T0Z 13quiadag 190y

PRREA NOOg 1o
95S'S1Y LTYZ A2qluadag (¢4

- 31BROasI(]
FUITRY 3804 241 10 aBaeys uoneraaidagg

(€Ll ako) s Aadoad JuounsoAL 0] 1ajsuRL]
STY90sT! OTOT 12quua2ad( 1 1V
5 spesudsig]
R00°€S ! 1B3A 1)) JO) OBLBYD uolRINAIA(]
L1yesel OTOT Adenuep | 1y

:unonenRaadag

KoO'LIF'T LZOT 19qudadg [V

= stesodsiey

F SUCTHIPPY
0er'v15°7) » AHodord WaLnEoALL Ul JapsL |
LTA MRS OCUT Joyrraan(] | ¢ iy

E s|esudsigg

CNP.V, z:C:..tt(.
SOLYIYE QTOT Anuey | 1v
11500
ay
_t_:t.._ »S__Q{u.,,tu_*
wo Suippng
ANIAIN QI ANV ALMIdOU o

UZUT U222 | { PopU2 1804 O4) 10) pUuR & Sy

SINTGWALVLS TVIONVNIA JALVAITOSNOD HHL O.L SHILON

SALIRIPISANS Sil PUR “ " )'S S Aurdlon) S19)0F] 1Hemn™

£



Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Asaland for the year ended 31 December 2021
9 PROPERTY AN EQUIPNIENT (continued)

Deprecintion
The depreciation meluded m (he consalidated statement of profic or loss s allocated ax (ollows:

2021 212

KD A
Cos( of sales 180,365 184,400
Administrative expenses 87.613 212321
Selling and diswibution expenses - 8.488
267,978 405308

Disposuls af properiy aind eqripment

In 2021, the Group disposed ttems of property mid equipment with a total et camying amount of KD 1844 (20215
KD 71,75) fora cash constderation ol 1D 21,514 (2020: KI3 23,400). The net gain on these disposals amounting o
KD 19,570 (2020: loss of KID 45,675) were recogrised as part of olher meome (expenses) in ihe consoclidaled
statement of profit or loss.

Fuoir value disclosure of building on leasehold lund

The Group complies with the real estate valuation procedures set out in Module 11 ¥ Dealing in Securities™ of the
CMA Executive Bylaws, which require valuations of local real estale properties classified as plan(, preperty and
equipment 1o be detennined by 4t least two independent. registered and accredited real extate appraised provided
that one of them is a Jocal bank and that the fower value is taken into account,

The fairvalue of the building on leasehold land as at 3] December 2021 is determined based on valuations camried
out by the respective appraisers uging the market comparison approach amownted w KD 855470 (2020, KD
2,408,000).

K H

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated price per square wetre in isolation would result in a significantly
higher (fower) fair value an a linca basis.

10 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the year, the Group rented oul a portion of jts building, previously used for its own administrative usc and
classified under property and equipment (o a ihird party. As a result. the rented-aus portion under an operating lease
with a net carrying amount of KD 1,463,237 has been reclassified and accounted for separaely as investiment property
al the date of change in use.

2021 2020

KD KD

Renta) meome derived from investment properties (included in rental incoine) 148,074 =
Direct operating expenses (included in cost of sales) (164.828) -
{16,754) =

Asg ul 31 December 2021, the {air value of the investinent properiies amounted 10 KD 1,455,930 (2020; KLY NIl

Tie fair value ol the investment properties has been detenmined based on valuations oblained from two
independent valuers, who are an induslry specialised m valuing these types of investment properties, one of these
valuers is g [oeal bank.

Beth valuators have used the followimg method for devetoped properties which generate rental income have been
valued psve the neame capitalisalion approach assuming full capacity of the property.

All investiment properties are considered under level 2 of the Taw value hierarchy, and there were no transfers
between level | and level 2 Tair value measuremems and ne transfer it aid owt ot level 3 fair value mcasurements

3]
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Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P, and i1s Subsidiaries
painy .o, ; 1d

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at and for the yvear ended 31 December 2621

11 INVESTMENT SECURITIES
2021 2020
I KD
Fincaciaol wssits af fefv sedvee ol other comprehensive iveomre 9,079 8.075
Unquoted equity securitios —_—
Fincaciol asseis wl foiv veatne peofit or foxx:
Unguoted equnly secilrifies 757306 S0
[uvestment seeurities (at lair vahie) 84,755 64,246

The hievarchy for determining and disclosing the fair values of fimzncial mstwents by valuation tcehnigues 1a

presented i Note 23,

2020
KD

1,188 847
(648.950)

239,807
376,959

12 ACCQUNTS RECEIVATRLE AND PREPAYMIENTS

2021

KD
Trade recejvables 1,304.643
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (661,200
643,440
Prepayments and other receivables 569,718
1,213,158

| 216856

The vet carrying value of wrade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of far valne

Note 23.1 includes disclostres relaling to the eredit risk exposures and on analyst relanng o the allowance for
expected credit Jusses on the Group's irade receivables. Other classes within accounts receivable da not contam

impaired assets,

The maximum exposure to eredit risk at the reporting dale is the carrying value of each class of receivables mentioned

above.

Set oul below 1s the movement in the allowance {or expected credit losses of rade recevables:

2021 2020

i KD
At ] January 648,980 1,013,089
Net allowance for expected credit losses recognised in profit or loss 12,252 151,586
Receivables wrilten off during the vear ax uncollectible® - (315.735)
661,203 648.950

Trade receivables are written off where there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicaters that there i< no
reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor Lo engage i a repayiicnt plan
with the Graup, and a failure (o make contractual payinents for & pertod of preater than 730 dayvs past due.




Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As atand for the vear ended 31 December 2021

13 CASH AND CASH PQUIVALTNTS
2021 2070
KD KD
Cash at banks and on hand RIR.713 10,778
Shortten deposits 1.971,541 1.639.037
2.810.254 2249815
Less:
Short-term deposits with oviginal matarity of more than three maonths - (35.578)
Cash aud cash equiyalents for the purpose of the statement of cash fows 2,810,254 2214237

Short-term deposils are mude for varving pericds beiween ane to six maunths, depending on the iimmediate cash
requirements of the Group. and ean inlerest at an average cifective interest rangg from 1% 1o | 125% (2020:
1% 40 1 125%) per annum..

Ay 31 December 2071, the Group had available KD 400,000 (2020, KI 400,000) of undrawn cormmitted

borewing facilities that way be drawn at any thie and may be lerminated by the bank without notice.

14 SHARE CAPITAL

Neouber of sheres _Awuthorived, fssued and fully paid
2021 2020 2021 2020
KD KD
Shares of 100 fils each (paid in ¢ash) 87,750,000 §7.750,000 5,775,000 5775000

15 RESERVLS

151 Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Companies™ Law. and the Pareni Company 's Memorandum of Incoporaiton and Avticles
of Association, a minimum of 0% of the profit for the year before tay and board of divectors’ rewruneration shall
e transferred to the statutory reserve based on the recommendation of (the Parent Company's board of directors.
The anmusl general ascembly of the Paremt Company may resolve tn discontinue such transfer when he reserve
exceeds 50% of the issued share capital. The reserve may only be used 1o offcet losses or enable the payment of
a dividend up to 3% of paid-up share capital in years when profit is not sufficient for the payment of sech dividend
due 10 absence of distributablc reserves. Any amounts deducted from the reserve shall be refanded when the profits
in the following vears suffice, unless such reserve exceeds 50%, of the 1ssued share capital.

[5.2 Volnutary reserve

In accordance with the Companies™ Law, and the Parent Company’s Memorandum of incorporation and Articles
ol Association, 2 maximum ol 10% of the proflt for the vear before tax and board of directors’ remuneration is
required 1o be bansferred lo the voluntary reserve, Such annual transfers may be discontimied by a resolution of
ihe <hareholders’ general assembly upen a reconmmendation by the Board of Directors. There are no restrictions
an the distribution of this reserve.

(5.3 Fair value veserve

The Group has elecied to recognise changes in the fair velue of certain mvestments in equity securities m other
comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated within the FYOC! reserve wilhin equity. The Group
ransfers amounts from this reserve to retzined camings when the relevant equity securities are derecognised,

15.4 Foreign cuwrreucy translation reserve

Exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign controlled entity are recognised in other comnprehensive
nconte and accumalaied in a sopavate reserve within equity. The cumulative amount s reclassified to prefli or
loxg when the net investmem is disposed of’

15.5 Other rescrve
Other reserve represents tlie clfect of changzes o ownership mievests in subsidiaries without loss of control

i3



[uwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subs)diaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As al and for the vear ended 31 December 2021

16 TREASURY SHARES
2021 2024
KD KD
Nunber of shares 1,316,700 1310700
Percentage of tasued shares 2.33% 233%
Coxt (K1Y 323,952 223,952
Market vatue (K1) 92,169 72.41¢

Reserves equivalent to the cost of the reasury shares held are not available for distributon during the holding
periad of such shaves as per CMA guidelines.

17 EMPLOYEES' END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

Set out below is ithe movement in the provisien for employees™ end of service benefils:

2027 202
KD KD
AL January 779,971 608.769
Charge for the year 110,111 137.148
Payments (238,925) (265 946)
651,157 779,971
18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLLES
202) 2120
KD KD
Trade payables 140,411 258.322
Unecamed revenue 576,297 567,786
Taxes payable 12,883 §.309
Advance from customers 23,676 233135
Employee payables 344,760 216.628
Refundable deposits 89,038 76.09¥
Other zecrials and payables 419,157 568.860
1,606,222 1717318

Terms and condinons of the above tmancial habihlies are:

Trade pavables arc non-uterest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms.
Other payables are non-inlerest bearing and have average term of six months

For explanation on the Group's liquidity risk management process. vefer to Note 22.2
19 SEGMENT INFORMATION

For managenient purposes, the Greup is organised nito tlree main business segments based on mteimal reporting
provided 1o the chiel operating decision maker:
Hote! Management: Owning, operating and managing of hotels and chalets
Catering and manpower supply services: Providing calering aind manpower supply services 1o
govemmental and non-governmental instintions.

Manavement monttors the vparating resalts of s husiness units separately (or (he purpose of making decisions
about resource allecation and performance assessment. Sepnent perfarmance is evpluated based on returm on
rvestments.

34
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IKuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries
NOTLES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at and for the year ended 31 Deccmber 2021

20 CONTINGENCIES

At the reporting dale. the Group has provided bank guarantees ta its customiers (or the performance far cotain
contracts of KD 1,551,867 (2020: KD 1.019.700). No material liability is expected lo arise,

21 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Reiated partics represent associates. major sharcholders, diveclors and key management personne! of the Groun and
entities controlled, joltly contralled or significantly iniTuenced by such parlies. Pricing policies and terms of these

transactions are approved by the Parvent Company s management.

Transactiony with related parties inchuded in the consolidated stateinent ol profitar loss e as follows;

Major Othey
shareliofifer affities 2ixr 20
KD KD KD KD
Revenue Jrow contracls with customers - 180,004 130,004 170,858
Manasgement fees 177,384 - 177384 90,148
Cost of sales (185,600) - (105,600) {103,600}
Administralive expenses (52,781) - (52,781) (62,029

Certain investmaent in equity securities amounting to KD 84,735 (2020: KD 63.132) are manaped by an entily under
CONUNON CoNLEoi.

The following tables shows the outsianding balznces with relaled partics:

2021 2020
KD AD
Consolidated statéement of financial position
Amounl due from relaied parties 130,965 118,926
Amount due to related parties 69,705 14.092

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Transactions with related parties arc made on Llerms approved by the Group's management, Outstanding halances at
the year-end ate unsecured and mterest frez and have no fixed repayment schedule. There have been no guaranices
provided or received for any related party reccivables or payables. For the year ended 31 Decorber 2021, the Group
has not recoguised any provision for expecled credit losses relating 1o amounls vwed by related parties {2020; Nib,

Key management conipensation

Key management pecsonnel comprise of the Board of Directors und key inember of’ the management having authedity
and responsibility for planning, directing and conwrolling the aclivities ol the Group. The aggrepale value ol
transactions and outstanding balances relating 10 key managenent personnel were as follows:

Transaction valnes for the Balanee prstanding as af
vewr ehded 31 December 34 December
202/ 2021 2021 2021
KD KD KD KD
Sarlaries and short-term employee henefits 160,972 202,643 28,777 25.564
End ot services benelits 13,240 16,765 198,882 [80).420
174,212 219410 227,659 2045984

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company has propused a directors” vemuncralion for (he year ended
31 Deeember 2021 (2020: Nil). Any such proposal is subject wo the approval of the shareholders at the AGM ol the
Pacent Company.




Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As al and for ibe yvear ended 31 December 2021

22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICILS

Risk is inherent in the Group's activiies. but it s manazed through a process ol engoing jdentitication.
measurement and montoring. subject to rigk limits and other controls. Thix process of rish management is critical
to the Group's continuing profitability and each individual within the Group is accountable for the risk exposures
relating to hix or her responsibilities. The Group s exposed to credit risk. hiquidity risk and market risk which 15
further sub-divided uito interest vate risk. foreign currency visk and equity price visk., The Group’s policy s o
monitor those business risks through the Group’s stralegic planning process.

The Group's principal financial labilitics comprise of daccounts payable and accrvals. The main purpose of these
financial Habilities {s 10 raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various financial assets such as
aecounts receivable and cash and cash equivalents which are directly from its operations.

The management of the Parent Company is ultiimately responsible for the overall risk management approach and
for approving the risk strategy. The management reviews and agrees policies for managing cach of these risks
which are summanised below:

221 Credit risk

Credit sk 15 the nisk that a counterparty will not meet tts obligauons under a financial instmument or customer
contract, feading to a financial Yoss. The Group 1% expesed 1o credit risk [rom jls operating activities primarily trade
and other rceetvables, and from its financing activities, ncluding deposits with banks.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reponting date is the cartying value of cach class of financial assets as
follows:

2021 2020

KD KD
Cash at banks 838,713 610.778
Short-term deposits 1.971,54] 1,630 037
Trade receivables 643,440 839,897
Anmoumts due from selated parties 130,965 118926
Other receivables {excluding prepayments) 290,172 219,261
3,874.831 3427899

Balances with hanks and shoristernt deposits
Credit risk from balances wilh banks and financial institutions is immited because the counterparties are reputable
financial instimtions with appropriate credit-ralings assigned by intermational credit-ratme agencies.

hnpaimnent on cash and shor-iern deposils has been measured onoa 12-month expected loss basis and reflects
the short matities of the exposures. The Growp considers that its cash and shori-tenn deposils have low credit
risk based on the external credif ratings of the eounierparnties

Trade veceivithies

The Group's expasure o credil risk is influenced mainly by the individual characieristics of each cnswmer.
However, management aiso considers the faciors that may influence the eredit sk of 115 customer base, including
ile default nsk associated with the industry and counltry in which customers operate. The Group Wmils its exposure
(o credii risk from accounts recetvahles by ealablishing a maximum payment peried of threc months for individual
and corporale cuslomers respectively,

The majority of the Group’s custoiners have been vansacting wilh (the Group for over three years, and none of
these custonters’ balances have been writien oft or are credit-impaired at the reporting date. In monitoring
cuslomer eredil risk, custonters are grouped aceording 1o therr credit characterisices, including whether they are
an individua) or a legal entity, whether thev are a corporale or governmen! entitics, trading history with the Group
aud exisience of previous financial difficelties.

tad
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22 FINANCTAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEFMENT OBIFECTIVES AND POLICIES
{continned)

221 Credit risk (continned)
Trate veceivables (continied)

A3 December 2021, the exposure 1w credit nisk for rade recenvables and contract assets by (vpe al counterparty
was as fotows:

2021 2024

I KD
Individual customers 120,928 82,546
Corporate customen 251,297 235,786
Government 271,215 527,565

643,440 539097

At 3) December 2021 the Group hiad four customers (2020: four) that owed it more than XD 50,000 each and
avcounted for appreximately 39% (2020: 32%) ol all the receivables cutstanding. There was oue customer (2020
two custamers) witl balances areater than KD 100,000 accouming for just over 14% (2020: 41%) of the 10al
amounts of receivabla. There are no gharantees againg! these receivables, but management closely monilors the
receivable balance on a manthly basis and is in regular contact with these customers o mitigate sk,

An impairment analysis is performed a1 cach reporting dale using a provision matrix 1o measwre expected credit
losses. The provision sates are based on days past due lor groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patierns. The caleulation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the ime value of money and reasonable
and supportable informalion (het is available al the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of fumne economic conditions, Generally, trade receivables are writien-off if past due for more than one
vear and are not subjecl {o enforcement activity. The nuiximun exposure to credil risk at the reportng date s the
carrying vaioe of each class of financizl asscty disclosed below. The Group does not requite collateral u respect of
trade and other fecenables. The Group does not have trade receivables for which no lass allowance is recogmsed
beeause of collalaral.

Sel ont below is the infarmation about the credit risk exposure on the Group's trade receivables using a provision
matrix:

Days past due
Crrvent <0 days  91-180 days =180 duys Total
37 December 2021 D iD KD XD KD
Expected credit loss rate - 1.53% 6.98% BB.OS%4 50.068%
Total gross carrving anmonnt it
defaull 280,532 180.843 111,723 731,544 1,304,643
Expected credit Joss - 2,158 7,193 650,652 661,203
Davs pust die _
Current <40 days 01180 dayy =180 duys Total
3! Devembior 2024) KD KD KD KD KD
Expected credil loss rate = 1.68% 14.57% 75.70% 43 59Y%,
Total gross carrying amount al
defaul 4587.670 172,117 6.947 832113 1 488.847
Expecied credil loss - 2883 1.012 645,053 648.950

Amuounis due jrom related parties and other veceivables

Amovnls due from related parties and other receivables are considered o have a low risk of defaull and
manapement believes that the counterpaitics have a strong capacity to nteet contractual cash flowe obligations in
the near 1o As a vesuli the wapact of applving the expected credit risk model at the reporting date was
immaleral.
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12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMUENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
{continued)

222 Liguidity risk

Liquidity nisk 1s the risk that the Greup will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with i1z
financial tabiliges Wial ave secled by delivering cash o another financial assel. The Group’s objective when
manaaing hgudity is 10 ensure, as {or as possible, that 1 will have sufficient lquidity o meet s Habaliies when
they are duc, under both normal and stressed conditions, withoul meurring unzcceptable losses or risking damage
to the Group’s reputation,

The Group aims o maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents al an amount in excess of expected cash
owtflows on fAinanctal habiltlics (other than frade payables) over the next &0 duys, The Group also manaped
fiquidity risk by continuously monitoring actual and forccast cash flaws and martehing the maturity profiles of
fmaneiai assets and lalnhtics.

The steps taken by the Group ta respond (o possible futere houidity constramts arising Trem the COVID-19
pandenme and the smpact of those steps on the consalidated fuancial statements include the follawing,

Managament has prepared a detailed casiflow analysis far the nexl 12 months to assess the iquidity position
of the Group and idennify liquidity gaps.

Managenient has 1aken actions 1o reduce operating losses by employee furlough together with other employee
cosl reduciions. Further, supplier costs decreased significantly. tagether with a reduction in non-essential
operaling and capital expenditure as a yvesult of COVID-19.

In addition. the Groun maintaing the following other hnes of credit. which remain undrawn ut 31 December 2021,

- KD 400,000 overdraft facility that 15 unseeured. Interest is payable at the rate of CBK discountrate plus 200
basis points an any drawn amounts (2023G: KD 400.000).

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial Jiabilities based on cantractual
unciscounted paynients,

Lexs than 3

months 3 — 12 months Toral
31 December 2021 KD KD KD
Trade and other pavables® 140,411 B&9,514 1,029,925

Legs than 23

months 2~ 12 months Toru!
37 Decenher 2020 KD KD KD
Trade and other payables® 258322 891.210 1,149,532

v evehding uncarned revenue

223 Markel risk
Marke 1isk iz the risk that the faty value or futwre cash Hows of a Nnancial instrament will Nuctuate because of

changes in market prices. Market risk comprise of mnterest rale risk. foreign currency risk. and equity price rigk.

22,21 Interest rate risk
Inierest rate risk is the risk thal the fair valuc or futwre cash Mows of a Ainancial instrument will Auctuate because

of changes in market interest rales.
Financial insuuments, which potentially subject the Group (o interest rate risk, consist principally of cash and
shorl-term depesits. The Group’s term deposits are short-terny in natwre and vield interest al commercial rates,

Theretore. the Group belicves there is minimal visk of significant losses due o mterest rate fiuctuations,

As 2l the repariing date, the Group does not hald intorest beanng babilines.
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1] FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

223 Market risk (continued)

22.3.2  Foreign currency risk
Foreign eurrency risk i the risk that the fair value or future cash fows of a Imancial Instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in forcign exchange rates,

Forcign currency risk is managed on the basis of Himitg determined by management wnd a continuous assesstent
of the Group’s open positions and current and expected exchange rate movements,

The rable below indicates the Group's foreign ewrrency exposure al 3] December 2021, as a result of its monetary
assets and labiltics. The analysis calculates the effect oi a reasonably possible movement of 3% i the
KD currency rate with all other variables held constant, on the statement of consolidated profit or Joxs {due to the
fair value of currency sensitive monctary assets and liabilities).

Lffect au resnits

2021 20211

D KD

Egyplian Pounds 9,000 6,355
USs Dollars - 1,779
COman Riyal 3,017 G25
Qalar Rival 1,739 ], 106
Syrian pound (SYP) 1,838 3.561
Tebancse pound (LBI") 428 371

2333 Eqguity price risk
The Group's equity investmenls are susceptible to market price visk arising from uncertainties about foture values
of the imvestment securities,

The Group holds sirategic equity invesiiments in private entities. which complement the Group's operations.
Management believes that the espostre to markel price risk from this activity is acceptable in the Group's
CATCUMAIANCES,

At the reporting date. the exposure (o unguoted cquity securities at fair value was KD 84,753, Sensitivity analyses
of these investments have been provided in Nole 23

23 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is defined as e price that would be veceived to sell an axset ar paid 1o transfes @ Habuity in orderly
wansacliony between market pardcipants st the measurement date,

Faiirvalue lierarcity
The Group uses the following hierarchy For detcnminmg and disclosing the fair values of its assets and Jiahilitics
by valnation technique:

Level 1 Quoted (vnadjusted) marker prices f1r aclive markets for identical assets or habilites:

Level 2: Valuation techniqties for which the Jowvest leve] input that 1 significant to the fair value sueasyrement
is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3: Valuvation techniques for which the lowest leve! input that is significznt to the fair value measurement
ix unobservable

The management assessed that the fair values of cash and short-term deposits. trade receivabies. trade payalbles
and olher current habilities approximate their carrying amounts as these are eilher ol shon-tenn maturity (no
longer than twelve months) or re-priced immediately based on market novemen( w interest rates. For amounis
due from [10) related parties that have no specified repayment daes and that are teceivable (payable) on demand,
management assessed Mar the fafr value i not bess than their face value,

The Group's financial assets measured an fail value tepresent unquoted equity mvestments clussificd as Level 3.
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23 FATR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {comtinued)

Valnation teclhiiynes

The Group Invests 1 private equily companies that are not quated in an active market. Transactions m such
investents do not oecur on a regular basis. The Group uses o markel-based valuation lechnwue for these
positions. The Group's invesimenl manager determings corparable public companies {peers) based on wdusyy,
size, leverape and strategy. and calculates an appropriate trading maltiple for each comparable company
identified. The multiple is then discounted for considerations such ax illiquidity and size differences between the
comparable companies based an Company specific facls and cireumstances,

Reconcitintion of Level 3 fuir valuyex
The [ollowing table shows a yeconciliation of all movements in the fair value of items categerised within Level 3

between the beginning and the end of the reporting perioar

Nan-listed equily investinents

Financial Financial

assers ar fixsefs iid
26421 o FTPL Tow!

RD iD Kb

Ax al 1 January 8.078 56,171 64,246
Remeasurement recognised in OC1 944 - 944
Remessurenient recognised in profit or foss - 19,565 19,565
As at A1 December 0,019 75,736 84,758

Neon-lsted equiny imvesinenrs

Fimcaicial Finaneral

asxely o assels ul
2021 FIGC! FI'TPL Tutuf

KD KD KD

Axar | January 36,545 A8.900 75,345
Remeasurement recegnised in OC! (2R.870) - {2R.370)
Remeasurement recognised in profit or loss - 17271 17.271
As al 31 December 8,075 56,171 64,246

Description ol sipnilicant unobservable inputs to valuation and sensitivity analysis to significant changes
in unobscrvable inputs withio Level 3 hievarehy

The significant unobservable inpuis used in the (air viine measurements catzgorised within Level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy include discount for luck of marketability (DLOM] that the Group has deterniined (hat mmarke
parlicipants wauld take into account when pricing the investmients. The Group has also perfornied a sensitivity
analysis by varying these inpots by 3%, Based on such analysis. no signitican changes n faw values were noted.

24 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital managenient objectives are:

1o ensure the Group's ability (o continue as a coing concery, and
lo pravide an adequate return Lo shareholders by pricing products and services moa way that reflecls the level
ol risk mvalved in providing those goods and services,

The Group monitars capital on the basis of the carryie amount of equity, less cash and cash cquivalenis ax
presented in the consclidated stalement of financial positon,

The Group is not subyect 1o externally imposed capnal requiretients.
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24 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continied)

The Group manages the capital structure and mwakes adjustments 1o i the Light of changes in economme
conditions and the risk characteristics ol the underlving assers, 1n order 1o maimtaim or adjust the capnal slryeture.
the Group raay adjust the amoun of dividends pad 1o shareholders. refurn capnal to shareholders. tssue new
shares, or sell assels 1o reduce debi

No changes wers made in the abjecnves. policies or processes 1or maraging capital duving the vears ended 31
Devember 2021 and 2020.

25 INMPACT OF COVID-19 OUTBREAK

The COVID-]4 outbreak was [rst reporied near the end 6f 2019 AL that e, a clusier of cases displaying the
symproms of a “pneumonia of unknown cause” were identified in Wuhan. the capital of China’s Hubel province.
On 31 Deeember 2019, China alerted (he World Health Organisation (WHO) of this new virus. On 30 January
2020, the Inernavonal Health Regutations Emergency Commitlee of the WHG declared the outbreak # ‘Public
Health Emergeney of Intemational Concern’. Since then, the virus has spread worldwide, On J] March 2020, the
WO declared the COVID- 19 outbreak 1o be a pandemic,

Ag a result, the Group conxidered the inpact of COVID-19 v preparing its cansolidated financial siatements.
While the speceific areas of judgement may not change. the inpact of COVID-19 resulted in the application of
further judgement within those areas.

Given the evolving nature of COVID- 19 and the Nimited recent experience of the economic and financial impacts
of such a pandemic, changes o esnmares may need (o be made in the measurement of the Group’s assets and
liabilities may arise in the fature.

Tvade and orhier receivables

The Group was required (o revise certamn inputs and assumplions esed for the determimation ol expected credn
losses (“ECLT). These were primarily related 1o adjusting the forward-looking estimates used by the Group in the
estimation of ECL as the segnientation applied i1 previous periods nay vo fonger be appropriate and may need 0
he revised to reflect the different ways in which the COVID-19 culbreak affects different iypes of customers.

Tlhe Group wili continue to assess impact of (he pandemic as more reliable data becomes available and accordingly
determing if any adjustment in the ECL is reguirad in subyequent reporting periods.

Fipairment of non-financial ussets

As il the reportivg date, the Group has considered the potentia) tmpact of the cumrent economic volatility in the
deterniination of the reported amounts of the Group's non-financial assets and the unobservable mputs are developed
using the best available infonnation about the assumptions that market participants would make in pricing these
assels al the reporting date. Markefs however remaiu volatile and the recorded amounts remain sensinve 1o market
Nuctuations.

The Group acknowledges that certain assels may neganvely be impacted. and as the situationt continues (¢ vntfold.
e Group will cominuously mamior the marker owtlook and use relevant assumpuions in reflecling the vajves of
Ihese non-linancial assets as and whern ey occur,

Foir value measureniont of lvestuient securitics

The Group has considered potenual impacts of the cumrent mavker volatility in determination of ibe reported
amounts of the Group’s unquoted Nnancial assets. and this represents managemenlt's besl assessmient based on
observable available Information as at the reporting date. Given the tmpact of COVID 19, the Group 1= closcly
monitoring whether the fair values of its investment seeurities represent the pnice that weuld be achieved for
transactions between market participants in the current scenario.

Going concern assessmeint

There s still significant uncertamty over how the oulbreak will iimpact the Gronp’s business in future periods and
customer demand. Management has therefore modelled a number of different scenarios considermg a period of
12 mouths {rom the date of authorisalion of these consolidated financisl statements in the loht of current economic
conditions and all available information aboul future risks and uncer@intics. The assumptions modelled are based
on the estimated potential fmpact of COVID-18 resirictions and regulations and expeeted levels of consumer
dawmand, atong with management’s pronosed responses over the course of the period. The nnpact of COVID-19
may continue o evoive, bt based on the Group's liquidity position and (nancial resources as at the date of
autharisation of these consotidated fmancial statemanits. the projections chow that the Group has ample resources
te contipue in operaficnal existence and ils going concorn position remains largely nnallected and unchanged from
3 Decomber 2020, Ay aresult, these vonsolidated tinancial statements have been prepared on a geing concern basis,
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